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Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1. For the Quarteriy Period ended: March 31, 2020

2. SEC Identification Number: 14102

3. BIR Tax ldentification Number;  041-000-175-630

4, Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter: Anglo Philippine Holdings Corp.
5. Province, Country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: Philippines
6. Industry Classification Code: (SEC Use Only)

7. Address of principal office: 6™ Floor Quad Alpha Centrum, 125 Pioneer Street,
Mandaluyong City 1550

8. Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (632) 631- 5139; (632) 635-6130
9. Former name, former address, and former fiscal year if changed since last report: N. A,

10. Securities registered pursuant to Section 4 and 8 of the RSA:

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Qutstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding

Commen Stock (P1.00 par value) 3.003,302.538 (excluding 13,000,000 shares in

Treasury Stock)
Loans Payable and Long Term Debt 0.00

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange:  Yes

12. Check whether the registrant:

a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Securities Regulation Code (SRC)
and Section 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding 12
months {or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports):

Yes | X] No| |

b) has been subject to such filing requirement held for the past 90 days.
Yes | X] Neo| |

13. Documents incorporated by reference:
a) The Company’s 2019 Audited Financial Statements.
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Item 1.

L]

10.

I

2.

PART 1 - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Financial Statements Required Under SRC Rule 68

The unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the quarter ended 31
March 2020 are included in this report. The schedules listed in the accompanying Index to
Supplementary Schedules are filed as part of this SEC Form 17-Q.

Interim Statements of Comprehensive Income for the current interim period (01 January to 31
March 2020), with comparative Statement of Comprehensive Income for the comparable
period (01 January to 31 March 2019) are attached to this report.

A statement showing changes in equity cumulatively for the current financial year to date
period (01 January to 31 March 2020), with a comparative statement for the comparable year-
to-date period of the immediately preceding financial year (01 January to 31 March 2019) are
attached to this report.

The basic and diluted earnings per share are presented on the face of the attached Statement of
Comprehensive Income (01 January to 31 March 2020), as well as the basis of computation
thereof.

The Company’s interim financial report for the 1st quarter 2020 has been prepared in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

The Company follows the same accounting policies and methods of computation in its interim
financial statements (01 January to 31 March 2020) compared with the most recent annual
financial statements (2019), and NO policies or methods have been changed.

Owing to the nature of the business of the Company as an investments holding firm, there were
NO seasonal or cyclical aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results
of interim operations of the Company.

There were NO unusual items during the interim period (01 Jamuary to 31 March 2020), the
nature, amount, size or incidents of which have affected the assets, liabilities, equity, net
income or cash flows of the Company.

There were NO changes in the estimates of amounts reported in prior financial years (2019 and
2018) that had a material effect in the current interim period (01 January to 31 March 2020).

There were NO issuances, repurchases and repayments of debt and equity securities during the
current interim period (01 January to 31 March 2020).

The Company does not generate revenues from any particular segment and its business
(investment holding) is not delineated into any segment, whether by business or geography.
The Company is not required to disclose segment information in its financial statements.

Up to the time of the filing of this Quarterly Report, there were NO material events subsequent
to the end of the interim period (01 January to 31 March 2020) that have not been reflected in
the financial statements for said interim period.
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13. There were NO changes in the composition of the Company during the interim period
(01 January to 31 March 2020), and there were no business combinations, acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and long-term investments, restructurings and
discontinuance of operations during said interim period.

14, The Company has NO contingent liabilities or contingent assets as of its last annual balance
sheet date (31 December 2019) and as of the end of the current interim period (31 March
2020).

15. There are NO material contingencies and any other events or transactions that are material to

an understanding of the current interim period {01 January to 31 March 2020).
Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Anralysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation
Financial Performance — 1st Quarter, 2020

Comparative financial highlights for the 1st quarters of fiscal years 2020 and 2019 are presented
below:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenues 9,757,036 17,147,610
Net Income/(Loss) (20,957,178) {19,817,375)
Total Assets 9,453,210,149 9,921,863,768
Total Liabilities 3,809,666,198 3,936,158,940
Net Worth 5,643,543,949 5,985,704,827
Issued and Qutstanding Capital 3,003,302,538 3,003,302,538

Changes in Financial Condition — 1st Quarter 2020 vs, st Quarter 2019

The Company posted P9.8 million in revenues and a net loss of P21.0 million as of end-March 2020,
compared to P17.1 million in revenues and a net loss of P19.8 million for the same period in 2019, The
net loss for the quarter ended March 2020 were attributable to Company’s equity share in net loss of its
associates and general administrative expenses incurred during the period.

Total Assets decreased to P9.4 billion as of end March 2020, compared to 9.9 billion as of end-March
2019 mainly due to Company’s equity share in net loss of associate.

Total Liabilities as decreased to P3.8 billion as of end March 2020, compared to P3.9 billion as of end
March 2019 due to recognition of discount on subscription payable which resulted to a day 1 gain
which amounted to P97.3 million,

Net Worth is still lower at P5.6 billion as of the end-March 2020, compared to P5.9 billion as of the

end-March 2019, due to the amount of net losses incurred by the Company during the year
2019.
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Changes in Financial Condition - 1st Quarter 2020 vs. Full Year 2019

Comparative financial highlights for the 1st quarter, 2020 and yearend 2019 are presented below:

31 March 2020 | December 31, 2019

Unaudited (Audited)

Revenues 9,757,036 191,914,262
Net Income/{Loss) (20,957,178) (142,315,928)
Total Assets 9,453,210,149 9,474,672,463

Total Liabilities

3,809,666,198

3,810,171,333

Net Worth

5,643,543,949

5,664,501,130

Issued and Qutstanding Capital

3,003,302,538

3,003,302,538

As of the Ist quarter of 2020, the Company posted revenues of P9.8 Million and a net loss of P21
million, compared to revenues of P191.9 million and a net loss P142.3 million during the year 2019.
The net loss during the first quarter of 2020 and as of end December 2019 was mainly due to the
Company’s equity share in net losses of its associates

The decreased in Total Assets as of end-March 2020 compared to end-December 2019 was due
Company’s equity share in net losses of its associates

Total Liabilities decreased as of end-March 2020 compared to end-December 2019 due to payment of
the Company’s payable and other accrued expenses.

The Company’s Net Worth decreased as of end-March 2020 as compared to end-December 2019, due
to net loss generated by the company during the 1% quarter of 2020.

The top five (5) key performance indicators of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiary are as
follows:

March 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

(Consolidated) {Consolidated}

Unaudited Audited

Current Ratio 1.04:1 1.07:1
Current Assets 310.943.085 320.135.833
Current Liabilities 298,147,189 298,652,324
Assets to Equity Ratio 1.68:1 1.67:1
Total Assets 9.453.210,149 9,474,672.463
Stockholders Equity 5,643.543,949 5,664,501,130
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.68:1 0.68: 1
Total Liabilities 3,809,666,198 3.810.171.333

SEC Form 17-Q
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Stockholders Equity 5,643,543,949 5,664,501,130
Equity to Debt Ratio 148:1 1.49: 1
Stockholders Equity 5,643,543,949 5,664,501,130

Total Liabilities

3.809,666,198

3,810,171,333

Book Value per share 1.88 1.89
Stockholders Equity 5.643,543,949 5,664,501,130
Shares Qutstanding 3,003,302,538 3,003,302,538
Earnings/(Loss) per share 0.007) (0.05)
Net Income/(Loss) (20,957,178) {142,313,928)
Average Number of shares 3.003,302.538 3.003,302,538

outstanding

Current Ratio slightly decreased to 1.04:1 as of end-March 2020 as compared to 1.07:1 end-December
2019 due to decrease in Current Assets due to decrease in cash and cash equivalent due to payment of
general administrative expenses.,

Assets to Equity Ratio is slightly higher at 1.68:1 as of end-March 31, 2020 as compared to 1.67:1 as
of end-December 2019.

Debt-to-Equity Ratio is slightly lower at 0.68 :1 as of end-March 2020 as compared to 0.69:1 as of end
December 2019. Equity-to-debt ratio is at 1.48:1 as of end-March 31, 2020 as compared to 1.49:1 as
of end December 2019.

Book Value per Share decreased to P1.88 per share as of end-March 2020 as compared to P1.89 as of
end-2019 due to net losses incurred by the company during the period. The Company posted Loss per
share of P0.007 as of end-March 2020 compared to a net loss of P0.05 as of end December 2019.

Results of Operations — 1% Quarter 2020

Vulcan Materials Corporation (VMC) (100% owned) has no revenue or expenses
earned/incurred as of end March 2020 and March 2019 respectively.

VMC ceased its operations effective December 2017 following the sale of its crushing plant and
exploration/production rights over the Montalban quarry to Big Rock Aggregates Corporation.

Anglo Philippine Power Corporation (APPC) (100% owned) is presently evaluating various
rengwable energy projects for future investment and is still in its pre-operating stage.

APPC wholly-owned subsidiary, Bataan Aggregates Corp. (BAC), commenced its commercial
operation in January 2018. On October 2019, BAC sold its quarry equipment to Concrete Stone Corp.
and paid over the proceeds of the sale to APPC in settlement of BAC’s debt. BAC registered a net loss
of P0.6 million as of end March 2020, compared to a net loss of P3.2 million as of end March 2019.
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The Company owns 34.32% of The Philodrill Corporation (OV} which posted a consolidated net loss
of P18 million as of end March 2020 compared to a net income of P9.04 million as of end March 2019,

The Galoc Field produces 173,600 barrels during the first quarter 2020, slightly lower than the
previous quarter’s output of 185,671 barrels.

United Paragon Mining Corporation (UPM) (25.69% owned) UPMC posted a net loss of P11.3
million as of end March 2020, compared to a net loss of P14.8 million as of end March 2019. UPM has
received a new exploration permit last August 24, 2018 and the Company is now working on the final
year of the implementation of its 2-year approved exploration work program. The Company is
expecting to finish the exploration work on 2020 before its expiration. However, due to Covid 19
pandemic, the Company fixed a one (1) year extension due to force majeure due on June 22, 2020.

Atlas Consolidated Mining & Development Corp. (AT) (28.64% owned) posted a consolidated net
loss of P36.8 million as of end March 2020, compared to a net loss P34.8 million as of end March
2019,

The Company continues to participate in the following Qil Exploration contracts:

Service Contract 6A Octon, NW Palawan 11.11000 %
Service Contract 14D Tara, NW Palawan 2.50000 %
Service Contract 53 Onshore Mindoro 5.00000 %
Service Contract 41 Sulu Sea 1.67900 %
SWAN Block NW Palawan 33.57800 %

SC- 6 Block A (Octon)

The DOE approved in January 2019 the proposed Octon Block WP & B for CY 2019. The proposed
activities include seismic attribute study on the northern block of SC 6A aimed at maturing a potential
drilling location for an exploratory well, and contingent programs of preparing a preliminary well
design and proposal as well as scoping project economics. Philodrill. as Operator, aims to be able to
identify a possible well location at the central fault of the West Malajon-Salvacion-Saddle Rock
anticlinorium within the current program.

The SCHA Joint Venture is currenily evaluating the offer of Tamarind Resources to undertake high-
level technical and economic studies on the Octon discovery. Foliowing preliminary discussions.
Tamarind submitted a work pan to activities anchored on the formulation of a Field Development Plan
(FDP) for the Octon discovery which the JV adopted and submitted to the DOE for approval as
supplemental CAPEX to the DOE-approved 2019 SC 6A WP&B. Eventually, a draft farm-in
agreement over a portion of the southern area of SC 6 covering the Octon field discovery was crafted
and is currently being negotiated. As envisaged, Tamarind gets to earn the maximum 58.88%
participating interest in the Octon Field sub-block. Consortium partner Petro Energy Resources has
been designated to assist in the negotiations regarding the Tamarind farm-in.

While these negotiations are ongoing. Philodrilt continued evaluating the northern block of SC 6A to
establish a better understanding of the reservoir distribution of the Galoc reservoir sands to be able
identify and propose a drilling location to test/appraise the Central Fault Block of the Malajon-
Salvacion-Saddle Rock structure. At the same time, the Operator continued its paralel in-house work
on the Octon Field to validate Tamarind’s evaluation of the Octon discovery in the southern block.
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Moving forward, Philodrill submitted and secured the DOE’s approval of the 2020 WP&B for SC 6A
which will progress the technical evaluation works in the northern and southern sectors of the SC with
the end view to identify and propose to the JV consortium a final exploration drilling location in the
Central Fault Block and to identify additional resources and appraisal opportunity on the Octon
discovery and surrounding areas.

SC-53 (Onshore Mindoroe)

Block operator Mindoro-Palawan Oil & Gas Inc. (MPOGI) had not provided updates as to their plans
for the block, specifically the activities to execute the Joint Venture's commitments including the
drilling of Progreso-2. In 2018, the DOE already instructed MPOGI to secure a Certificate of Pre-
Condition from the National Commission on Indigenous People (NCIP) which will enable the lifting of
the moratorium on activities, thus allowing the conduct of drilling activities in SC 53.

For its part, Philodrill assisted Gas2Grid, the operator of SC 44 in onshore Cebu, which earlier
indicated interest on the Progreso Project through possible drill-for-equity with the Onshore Mindoro
joint venture. While MPOGI! did not provide details of their negotiations with Gas2Grid, the operator
disclosed that they were also entertaining expression of interest by another group for possible farm-in
to Onshore Mindoro Block.

In a letter to MPOGI dated June 14, 2019, the DOE terminated SC 53 due to the operator’s continued
failure to comply with their reportorial obligations. This came as a big surprise to the non-operator
partners (Philodrill, Angle Philippine Heldings and Basic Energy) as they had all been demanding
MPQGI to rectify the operator’s operational deficiency. Neither the operator nor the DOE notified the
other JV partners of the contract termination, as the partners only came to know of the decision during
a verbal inquiry with DOE on July 4, 2019,

immediately a Motion for Reconsideration {MR) on the termination of the SC was submitted to the
DOE on July 8, 2019 and during an audience with the DOE on July 12, 2019, the Non-Operator
partners manifested to reconstitute the Joint Venture and agreed to continue the service contract and
deliver the SC53 commitments. The DOE, up until now, is still evaluating the merits of the MR.

While the MR was pending with the DOE, Philodrill assuming the role of de facto operator
coordinated with Newrest SOS (NSOS) for the settlement of the outstanding JV obligations that
MPOG! failed to settle with NSOS, principally rental and lease of spaces at the Mabini ESB where
long-lead items { LLIs) intended for the Progreso drilling project are currently stored.

Upon recommendation of NSOS, Philodrill also negotiated and eventually engaged third-party
contractor ACE Tubular Service. Ltd which did an inspection and assessment of the current condition
of the LLIs for future use and/or disposal or sale. Results of the inspection work were presented to the
partners in December 2019. Despite settlement of the storage fees dues NSOS, the Joint Venture
realized that the continued storage of the LLIs will incur costs while waiting for the DOE decision on
the still pending MR. Philodrill then sought and was granted approval by the DOE for the sale of the
inventory to Felpet Trading and Materials Recovery Services which was selected through competitive
bidding.
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Sulu Sea (formerly Service Coniract 41)

The DOE launched the Philippine Conventional Energy Contracting Program (PCECP) in November
2018. Philodrill and bid application partner PXP Energy submitted in August 15, 2019 a joint bid over
Area 7 in Sulu Sea, one of the 14 pre-determined areas on offer. Area 7 was formerly covered by
Service Contract 41 in which both Philodrill and PXP Energy were joint venture participants. During
the opening of bids, the joint venture Philodrill/PXP application was assessed to have successfully
satisfied the criteria set for the contracting round. This was confirmed in writing by the DOE in
September when they accepted the bid for further substantive legal, financial and technical evaluation,

PNOC —Exploration Corporation (PNOC-EC) expressed interest in exercising its option to take in 10%
participating interest once a new service contract is awarded over the area. Similarly, Oriental
Petroleum also expressed its interest in joining the Joint Venture for Area 7. Philodrill had advised
these companites to wait until after has completed evaluation of the application so as not to undermine
the PCECP process.

In November 2019, the DOE advised that processing of bid applications and awarding of new service
contracts is being held in abeyance specifically in areas under the jurisdiction of the Bangsamaro
Autonomous Region in Muslim Mindanao (BARMM) until an Executive Ovder (EQ), currently being
drafted by the DOE, is signed by the President. The said EO clarifies the extent of BARMM’s
participation and entitlements from energy contracts within BARMM.

The Company has an existing agreement with TPC to acquire a portion of the interest that may be
awarded to TPC in the area.

SC-14 Tara Block
Plug and Abandonment and Decommissioning Activities

Philodrill continued and completed the suspended plug and abandonment (P&A) program for the Tara
South-1 and Libro-1 wells in compliance with government regulations and good industry practices. In
2014, a program for the P&A of these wells together with Pandan-1, were carried out. However under
this campaign only the P&A of the Pandan-1 well was successful and similar attempts on the Tara
South-1 and Libro wells failed. This year, Philodrill with the approval of the joint venture continued
the remedial P&A of these two wells under a new program and on behalf of the SC 14B and SC 14
Tara Block consortia engaged the services of contractor CET Consultancy Limited for the project. The
remedial P&A of the two wells were successfully completed in May 2018 below budget and on
schedule.

SWAN BLOCK (Deepwater Northwest Palawan)

Philodrill continues to evaluate all available exploration data on the deep-water area offshore NW
Palawan, particularly in areas previously covered by the SWAN Block. This is in line with the planned
participation of Philedrill in the farm-in program of PNOC-Exploration Corporation in Service
Contract 57 and possible participation in exploration venture on other deep-water blocks in the West
Philippine Sea region. An initial meeting with PNOC-EC was held in September last year for the
initial review of technical data in SC 57 under a Confidentiality Agreement.

Additional information required by Item 1 (a) aiso contained in Note 10 to the Company’s 2019
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Property Development

Tipo Valley Realty, Inc. (TVRI) (97.59% owned) as of end March 2020, TVRI posted a net loss of
P1.5 Million, compared to a net loss of P1.2 million as of end March 2019.

In August 2019, TVRI obtained DAR approval of its conversion application involving 243 parcels of
land with an aggregates area of 257.0561 hectares located in Hermosa, Bataan. The Company is in the
process of complying with post-approval conditions. Furthermore, TVRI has acquired an additional of
134,297 square meters for possible access to the site.

The Company likewise continues to maintain 15.79% interest in MRT Development Corp. which
generates revenues from concessionaire rentals and advertising fees in the MRT stations.

Infrastructure
The Company continues to maintain its 18.6% equity in MRT Holdings, Inc., the indirect majority

owner of the Metro Rail Transit Corporation (MRTC). As of end-December 2019, average ridership is
about less than 100,000 passengers per day.

Other Investments

The Company has minority investment in Brightnote Assets Corporation, a holding company
organized for the purpose of investing in the Calabarzon area.

Filipinas Energy Corporation (FEC) has not undertaken any business operation since its
incorporation due to the deferment of the transfer of the Company’s oil and mineral assets.

NO bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceeding has been filed by or against the Company and/or its
subsidiary during the last three (3) years.

NO material reclassification, merger, consolidation, or purchase/sale of a significant amount of assets,
not in the ordinary course of business, has been undertaken by the Company and/or its subsidiary
during the last three (3) years, EXCEPT (i) the acquisition of additional shares in AT last February 27,
2017 and August 11,2017, for 25.1 M shares and 819.9 M shares, respectively, thereby increasing the
Company’s ownership therein from 8.37% to 28.64%.(ii) the sale of quarry equipment of Bataan
Aggregates Corporation, subsidiary of Anglo Phil. Power Corp.

Discussion and Analysis of Material Events and Uncertainties
Except as discussed below, Management is not aware of any material event or uncertainty that has
affected the current interim period and/or would have a material impact on future operations of the

Company.

The Company will continue to be affected by the Philippine business environment as may be
influenced by any local/regional financial and political crises.

(i) There are NO known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that have or are
reasonably likely to have a material impact on the Company’s short-term or long-term
liquidity.

10
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

4

(vi).
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(b
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(d)

(e)
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[tem 3.

The Company’s internal source of liquidity comes, primarily, from revenues generated from
operations. The Company’s external source of liquidity comes, primarily, from loans/financing
obtained from financial institutions and, alternatively, may also come from the collection of its
accounts receivables,

The Company has NO material commitments for capital expenditures but is expected to
contribute its equity share in the capital expenditures of its investee companies. However, the
bulk of the funding for such expenditures will be sourced from project financing,

There are NO known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or are reasonably expected
to have a material impact on the revenues or income from continuing operations.

There are NO significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's
operations.

There have been NO material changes from 31 December 2019 to 31 March 2020 in one or
more line items of the Company’s financial statements, EXCEPT as disclosed below:

Cash and Cash Equivalents decreased from P90.8 million as of end-2019 to P72.6 million as
of end-March 2020 mainly due payment of general administrative expenses incurred by the
Company,

Account Receivables increased due to additional advances made to its affiliates.

Investment in associates decreased due to net losses incurred by its associates during the
period.

Total liabilities slightly decreased due to payment of the Company’s payable and accrued
expenses.

Retained Earnings decreased due to a corresponding net losses incurred by the Company as of
end-March 2020.

There are NO events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material
to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

There are NO material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or
other persons created during the reporting period.

Management’s Assessment and Evaluation of Financial Risk Exposures

A. Financial Risk Exposures

The Group has exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange
risk and equity price risk from the use of its financial instruments. The Board reviews and approves the
policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.

1
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises principally from Group’s cash and
cash equivalents, receivables and AFS Financial assets.

The Group ensures that its financial assets are considered high grade by transacting only with top
banks in the Philippines and maintaining good relationships with related parties, key empioyees,
debtors and lessors who are highly reputable and with good credit standing.

Cash with banks are deposits made with reputable banks duly approved by the BOD.

Receivables balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to
credit risk is not significant. No receivables are past due and all receivables are assessed to be
collectible and in good standing as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, Provisions for
impairment losses on trade receivables and other receivables were made on accounts specifically
identified to be doubtful of collection.

Other than the receivable which were provided with allowance, all other receivable are assessed to be
collectible and in good standing as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019,

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the aggregate carrying amount of its financial
assets,

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group’s objectives to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking adverse effect to the Group's
credit standing.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility in operations. Treasury controls and procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is
maintained to cover daily operational and working capital requirements. Management closely monitors
the Group’s future and contingent obligations and sets up required cash reserves as necessary in
accordance with internal policies.

As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents may be
withdrawn anytime while and AFS investments are traded in the stock exchange and may be converted

to cash by selling them during the normal trading hours on any business day.

The following tables show maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as well as undiscounted
cash flows from financial assets used for liquidity management:

12
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March 31, 2020

Contractual Undiscounted Payments

Less than Mare than
Total On Demand 1 year 1to 2 Years 2 Years
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Cash and cash equivalent R72,613,790 B72,613,790 f P £
Trade and other receivables 204,747,227 204,747,227 - - -
Long-term notes receivable 589,690,570 - - 60,000,000 329,690,570
(Forward)
Financial assets at FVTPL £11,964,260 £11,964,200 B P P
Financial assets at FVOCI 2,715,462 - - - 2,715,462
897,897,686 305,491,654 - 60,000,000 532,406,032
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses* 252,124,427 162,705,345 - - 89,419,082
Due to related parties 838,928,622 41,880,742 - 797,047,880 -
Subscription payable 2,782,760,050 2,136,170 — 2,780,623,380 -
3,873,813,099 206,722,257 - 3,577,671,760 89,419,082
Net Financial Assets {Liabilities) (£2,992,081,850) £82,602,960 B (®3,517,671,760)  $442,986,950
* Excluding statutory pavables
December 31, 2019
Contractual Undiscounted Payments
Less than More than
Total On Demand 1 year 1to 2 Years 2 Years
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Cash and cash equivalent £90,807,779 B90,807,779 P | o f
Trade and other receivables 202,719,675 202,719,675 - - -
Long-term notes receivable 589,690,570 - - 60,000,000 529,690,570
(Forward)
Financial assets at FVTPL £11,964,200 £11,964,200 P f o -
Financial assets at FYOC] 2,715,462 - - - 2,715,462
897,897,686 305,491,654 - 60,000,000 532,406,032
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses* 250,606,074 161,186,992 - - 89,419,082
Due to related parties 838,928,622 41,880,742 - 797,047,880 -
Subscription payable 2,782,760,050 2,136,170 - 2,780,623,880 -
3,872,294,746 205,203,904 - 3,577,671,760 89,419,082
Net Financial Assets {Liabilities) (B2,974,397,060)  £100,287,750 B (B3,517,671,760)  £442,986,950

* Excluding statutory pavables

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and other market prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rate relates primarily to its shot-
term loans payable and long-term debt obligations with fixed interest rates. Most of the Group’s
existing debt obligations are based on fixed interest rates with relatively small component of the
debts that are subject to interest rate fluctuation. Interest on financial instruments classified as
fixed rate is fixed until the maturity of the instrument.

13
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group uses the Philippine peso as its functional currency and is therefore exposed to foreign
exchange movements, primarily in U.S. dollar currency. The Group follows a policy to manage its
foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring its cash flow position and by providing forecast on all
other exposures in non-peso currencies.

Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the
levels of equity indices and the value of the listed shares. The equity price risk exposure arises
from the Group’s investment in financial assets at FVPL and quoted AFS investments,

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the financial instruments could be exchanged in a
current transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models, as appropriate.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to extimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Accounts Payable. Short Term Loans Pavable and
Accrued Expenses

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable and accrued
expenses and short-term loans payable approximate their fair values due to their short-term
maturities.

AFS Investments.

The fair values of publicly traded instruments & similar investments determined based on quoted
bid market prices at the balance sheet date. For unquoted AFS equity securities for which no
reliable basis of fair value measurement is available, these are carried at cost, impairment loss.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy in determining the fair value of financial instruments
by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets or identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have significant effect on the recorded
fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data

14
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March 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at FVPL £11,964,200
AFS investments — quoted 2,715,462 — —
B14,964,200 i
December 31, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at FYPL £11,964,200
AFS investments — quoted 2,715,462 — —
P14,964,462 P P

As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company’s financial assets measured at
fair value composed of common shares of Aboitiz Power Corp, Shang Properties Inc.,
Semirara Mining & Power corp, Aboitiz Equity Ventures Inc. and Chelsea Logistics Holdings
Corp.

As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2 fair value measurements and no transfers into and out of the level 3 measurements.

Derivative Asset

The Group has no derivative assets for the period ended March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.
PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

There were items for disclosure that were made under SEC Form 17-C during the current interim
period (01 January to 31 March 2020).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the registrant has caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thercunto duly authorized.

Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
Registrant
(through its duly authorized representatives):

Date: Date:
Adrian Paulino S. Ramos Gilbert V. Rabago
President/Director/CQOQ Treasurer

Date:

Iris Marie U, Carpio-Duque
Corporate Secretary/
Compliance Officer and
Corporate Information Officer
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the registrant has caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation
Registrant
(through its duly authorized representatives):

- |
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Adrian Paulino S. Ramos Gilbert V., W
President/Director/COO Treasurer
Date:
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16

SEC Form 17-0
Report for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2020



Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation

ANGLO PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE
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ANGLO PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS
Current Assets

Unaudited
31-Mar-20
Consolidated

Audited
31-Dec-19
Consolidated

Cash and cash equivalents 72,613,750 90,807,779
Receivables 204,747,227 202,719,675
Financial Assets at Fair Value through profit and loss (FVPL) 11,964,200 11,964,200
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 21,617,868 14,644,179
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 310,943,085 320,135,833
Noncurrent Assets

Long-term note 589,690,570 589,690,570
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 2,715,462 2,715,462
investment in associates 7,980,860,215 7,991,530,236
Property and eguipment 8,505,105 9,008,984
Investment property 307,835,244 305,581,329
Deferred exploration costs 176,719,145 176,523,661
Pension assets 8,165,34] 8,165,341
Other noncurrent assets 67,775,981 71,321,045

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS

9,142,267,064

9,154,536,630

TOTAL ASSETS

$,453,210,149

9,474,672,463

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 253,625,779 254,130,896
Due to related Parties 41,880,724 41,880,742
Subscription Payable 2,136,170 2,136,170
Provision for plug and abandonment cost 457,016 467,016
Income tax payahble 37,500 37,500
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 298,147,189 298,652,324
Subscription Payable - net of current portion 2,694,916,132 2,694,916,132
Due to related parties - net of current portion 797,047,880 797,047,880
Deposits from customer 15,559,916 15,559,916
Deferred income tax liabilities- net 3,995,081 3,995,081

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

3,511,518,009

3,511,519,009

TOTAL LIABILITIES

3,809,5666,198

3,810,171,333

Capital stock
tssued
Subscribed
Additional Paid-In Capital

Net unreatized valuation gain(loss) on financial assets af FVOCI/AFS financial

3,008,919,508
6,015,343
1,570,157,056

3,008,919,508
6,015,343
1,570,157,056

assets (1,617,451} (1,617,491}
Re-measurement gains on defined benefits 2,140,453 2,140,453
Share in other comprehensive income {lass) of an associate 282,200,844 282,200,844
Retained earnings 796,316,376 817,273,556
Treasury Stock (27,566,075) (27,566,075)
Equity attributable to equity halders of the Parent Company 5,636,566,013 5,657,523,194
Non-controlling interest 6,977,936 6,977,336

TOTAL EQUITY

5,643,543,945

5,664,501,:30

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

9,453,210,145

9,474,672 463
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ANGLO PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 AND 2019

Unaudited
Januaty 1 to
March 31, 2020
Consolidated

Unaudited
January 1 to
March 31, 2019
Consolidated

REVENUES

Sales - 8,573,831

Gains on: - -

Interest income 8,757,036 8,358,654

Other income - 215,125

9,757,036 17,147,610

COST AND EXPENSES

Cost of sales - 3,391,680

General and administrative expenses 10,195,889 22,960,797

Equity in net losses (income} of associates 20,518,325 10,612,507
30,714,214 36,964,385

INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (20,957,178) {19,817,375)

PROVISION FOR {BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX

Current

Deferred

NET INCOMEHLOSS) (20,957,178} (19,817,375)

MINORITY INTEREST

TOGTAL NET INCOME/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY

{20,957,178)

(19,817,375

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS} ATTRIBUTABLE (20,957,178} {19,817,375)
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY
Basic and Diluted Earnings/(Loss) per share {0.007} {0.007)
19
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Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation

ANGLO PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Unaudited Unaudited
January 1 to January 1 to
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
Consolidated Consolidated

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
income/{Loss) before income tax (20,957,178) (19,817,375)
Income before income tax from discontinued operations - -
Total income before income tax
Adjustment to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 503,881 7,409,610
Decrease (increase} in: -
Receivables (2,027,552) (6,600,683)
Prepayments and other current assets (6,973,689) (2,941,133}
Other non-current assets 3,545,064 7,079,403
increase {decrease} in: -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses {505,117) 22,407,113
Due to related parties (18} {24,662,304)
Income tax payable
Net cash used in operating activities [26,414,608) {17,125,369)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease {increase) in:
Investment property {2,253,915) -
investment in associates 10,670,020 10,034,609
Deferred exploration {195,484) (174,106)
Net cash used in investing activities 8,220,621 9,860,503
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings - -
Payment of borrowings - (5,507,375)
Net cash provided by financing activities - {5,507,375})
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (18,193,988) (12,772,241)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING 90,807,779 43,577,731
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END 72,613,790 30,805,491
21
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ANGLO PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE A - FINANCIAL ASSETS

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
March 31, 2020

Name of Issuing
entity and
associntion of

each issue

Nuinber of shares
or principal
amount of bonds

and notes

Amount
shown in the
balance sheet

(in Peso)

Vatued based on
market quotation end
of reporting period

(in Peso)

Income received
and accrued

{in Peso)

Aboiiz Power Corporanon 107.000 3,659,400 2,782,000 -
Shang Properties, lue. 1 074000 3.436.800 3,007,200 -
Semrara Miniug & Power Corporation 127.000 2,794.000 1,346,200 -
Aboinz Equity Ventsnes. Ine. 36.600.00 1.854,000 1,047,600 -
Chelsea Logistics Holdings Corp 40000 220,000 114,000 -

11,964.200 8.207.000 -
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SCHEDULE B
ANGLO PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, RELATED PARTIES AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS (OTHER
THAN RELATED PARTIES)
PURSTANT T0 SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
March 31, 2020

Designation of | Beginning Amounts Amounts Balance at end
Debtor period Additions Collected Written Off Current Non-Current of period
{None)
23
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SCHEDUEE €

ANGLO PHILIPPINE HOLDENGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES WHICH ARE ELIMINATED DURING ¢ ONSOLIDATION OF FINANCLIAL STATEMENTS
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 63, AS AMENDED

Marel 3L 2020

Amounts
Name and Designatiob of Balance at Additions. Collecred: Aoty Balasce at end
Debror Beginning period Deductions Settlements Written OFf Current Non-Current of period
Vulcan Matenals Corporanon 2772790 - - - - - R )
Ovhelly owned subsidiaryy
Tipo Valey Realry Inc.
(97500, puyed) ST254810 4 ilonls - - - - GlACHEDS

Anglo Phil Power Corp
1 100% ouned)

22.59%.131

22,39, 3¢
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SCHEDULE D

ANGLO PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDLARIES

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - OTHER ASSETS
(OTHER THAN RELATED PARTIES)

Mareh 31. 2020

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED

Charged to Other changes
Beginning cost and Charged to additions Ending
Drescription balance Additions at cost expenses other accounts | (deductions) balance
{None}
25
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Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation

ANGLO PHILIPFINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE E - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Other Charges

Beginning Addirions Ending
Classification Balance Addirions Retirements Deductions Balance
Condominium Units and Improvements ERRVINO - - 22091617
Transportation Equipment 4471071 1471071
Furnitures, Fixtures & Office Equipment 927222 - - w2l
27,482,910 - - - 27489910
ANGLO PHILIPPENE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHETH'LE F - ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
Other Charges
Beginning Additiens/ Ending
Classification Balance Additions Retirements (Deductions) Balance
Condominium Units and Improvements 14581796 276303 - 14.858.099
Transportation Equipment 3006482 223554 3.230.036
Furnitures. Fixtures & Otfice Equipment 392,646 40258 - 896.671
18,480,924 503.881 - - 13.984,805
26
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Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation

ANGLO PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
FINANCIAL RATIOS
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
March 31, 2020

31-March 2020 31-March 2019

Profitability Ratios:

Return on assets -0.22% -0.20%

Return on equity 0.37% -0.33%

Gross profit margin —% %

Net profit margin -214.79% -115.57%
Liguidity and Seolvency Ratios:

Current ratio 1.04:1 0.08:1

Quick ratio 0.97:1 0.07:1

Sclvency ratio -0.005:1 -0.003:1
Financial Leverage Ratios:

Asset to equity ratio 1.04:1 1.65:1

Debt ratio 0.04:1 0.397:1

Debt to equity ratio 0.07:1 0.66:1

Interest coverage ratio - -
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for
financial assets measured at fair value through profit-or-loss (FVTPL) and financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), which are carried at fair value. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (B), which is the Group’s functional
and presentation currency under the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). All values are
rounded off to the nearest Peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with PFRSs.

Basis for Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries,

The Group is considered to have control over an investee, if and only if the Group has:

* Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

* The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

¢ The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
¢ Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of the subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control, and continues to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control
until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
Company using consistent accounting policies,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests (NCI), even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.  All intra-Group balances and transactions, including income, eXpenses,
unrealized gains and losses and dividends, are eliminated in full consolidation.
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A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

Derccognizes the carrying amount of any NCI;

Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;

Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and,

Reclassifies the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI) or other comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings,
as appropriate.

NCI represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in the subsidiaries not held by the Group and
are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within equity in
the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from the equity aftributable to equity
holders of the parent. Transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for as equity
transactions. On acquisitions of non-controlling interests, the difference between the consideration
and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired is reflected as being a transaction between
owners and recognized directly in equity. Gain or loss on disposals to non-controlling interest is also
recognized directly in equity.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the subsidiaries

listed below:
Percentage of Ownership
Group Principal Activities Mar31, 2020 Dec 31,2019
Direct interest
Vulcan Materials Corporation Mining exploration and sale of 100 100
aggregates
Tipo Valley Realty, Inc. (TVRI) Real estate holding and 9759 97 59
development
Anglo Phil. Power Corp. (APPC) Energy resources 100 100
Indirect inferest
Bataan Aggregates Corp. (BAC) Sand and gravel quarrying 100 100

VMC was registered with the Philippine SEC on September 12, 1991 and was previously engaged in
mining exploration and sale of aggregates. As at March 31, 2020, VMC has no operations.

On December 22, 2015, the Parent Company acquired 97.59% of interest in TVRI which is engaged in
reai estate development. As at December 31, 2019, TVRI has not yet started commercial operations.

APPC was registered with the Philippine SEC on September 26, 2016 primarily to undertake the
development, exploitation and processing of any energy resources,

BAC was registered with the Philippine SEC on May 4, 2017 and is primarily engaged in sand and
gravel quarrying. BAC started commercial operations in January 2018. On September 24, 2019, the
BOD of BAC authorized the termination of the Company’s quarrying project and the execution of sale
of the Company’s machines, equipment and other inventories located in the quarry premises.
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that
the Group has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting January 1, 2019:

*

Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under PFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding® (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held
within the appropriate business model for that classification. The amendments to PFRS 9 clarify
that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of the event or circumstance that causes
the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the contract.

These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
PFRS 16, Leases

PFRS 16 supersedes PAS 17, Leases, Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-4, Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, Philippine Interpretation SIC-15, Operating Leases-Incentives, and
Philippine Interpretation SIC-27, Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognize most leases on the statement
of financial position.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. Therefore,
PFRS 16 did not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

These amendments have no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. The Group does not have any leases which are in-scope under the new leases standard.

Amendments to PAS 19, Employee Benefits, Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to PAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is
required to:

o Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined
benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after
that event.
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o Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to remeasure that net
defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss
on settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognized in
profit or loss. An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement. Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net
interest, is recognized in other comprehensive income.

The amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as it did
not have any plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements during the period.

e Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies PFRS 9 to [ong-term interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is relevant
because it implies that the expected credit loss model in PFRS 9 applies to such long-term
interests.

The amendments also clarified that, in applying PFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any
losses of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognized
as adjustments to the net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from applying PAS
28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

Since the Group does not have long-term interests in associate and joint venture to which equity
method is not applied, these amendments do not have an impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

¢ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12, fncome Taxes, and does not apply to taxes or
levies outside the scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

o Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

o The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities

o How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates

o How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The entity is required to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and use the approach that better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall assume that the taxation authority will examine

32

SEC Form 17-Q
Report for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2020



Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation

amounts that it has a right to examine and have full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If an entity concludes that it is not probable that the taxation authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, it shall reflect the effect of the uncertainty for each
uncertain tax treatment vsing the method the entity expects to better predict the resolution of the
uncertainty.

Upon adoption of the Interpretation, the Group has assessed whether it has any uncertain tax
position. The Group applies significant judgement in identifying uncertainties over its income tax
treatments. The Group determined, based on its assessment, that it is probable that its income tax
treatments will be accepted by the taxation authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation does not
have an impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

¢ Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, and PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements,
Previously Held Interest in a Joint Operation

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation, it applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including
remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair
value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held interest in the joint
operation.

A party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain
Jjoint control of the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
business as defined in PFRS 3. The amendments clarify that the previously held interests in
that joint operation are not remeasured.

These amendments are currently not applicable to the Group but may apply to future
transactions.

o Amendments to PAS 12, Jncome Tax Consequences of Payments on Financial Instruments
Classified as Equity

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more
directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions
to owners. Therefore, an entity recognizes the income tax consequences of dividends in profit
or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognized those past transactions or events.

These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group since
there was no dividends declared during the year.

o Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalization
The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary

to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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New Standards and Interpretation Issued and Effective after December 31, 2019

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on
its consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements when
they become effective.

Effective Beginning on or Afier January 1, 2020
o Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the
assessment of a market participant’s ability to replace missing elements, and narrow the definition
of outputs. The amendments also add guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and add illustrative examples. An optional fair value concentration test is introduced
which permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business.

An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted.

These amendments will apply to future business combinations of the Group.

* Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Definition of Material

The amendments refine the definition of material in PAS 1 and align the definitions used across
PFRSs and other pronouncements. They are intended to improve the understanding of the existing
requirements rather than to significantly impact an entity’s materiality judgements.

An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.
Effective Beginning on or After January 1, 2021
o  PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition
and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace PFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance
contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities
that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is

more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are
largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a
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comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core
of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

o A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
o A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021, with comparative
figures required. Early application is permitted.

The new standard is not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group because it is not engaged in the insurance business.

Deferred Effectivity

e Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associale or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments
clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves
a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets
that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture,

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) deferred the original
effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting
that may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of
accounting for associates and joint ventures.

The Group plans to apply the amendments on the required effective date.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is:

» Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* Expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
teast 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
A liability is current when:

» Jtis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
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* Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting date.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.

Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or,
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
s Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve!l input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at each end of the reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Presentation of Financial Statements
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The Group has elected to present all items of recognized income and expense in single consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition

Financial instruments are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date (i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs are
included in the initial measurement of all financial assets and liabilities, except for financial
instruments measured at FVTPL.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement Prior to January 1, 2018

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified in the following categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables, AFS financial assets, held-to-maturity (HTM) investment, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market. The
Parent Company determines the classification at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

»  Financial Assets at FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading
purposes and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of seiling in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments or a financial guarantee
contract. Fair value gains or losses are recognized in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Interest and dividend income or expense is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to the payment
has been established. Interest earned on holding financial assets at FVTPL is reported as interest
income using the EIR. Dividends earned on holding financial assets at FVTPL are recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the right of payment has been
established.

Financial assets may be designated as at FVTPL by management on initial recognition when any
of the following criteria are met:

* The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different
basis;

e The assets are part of Parent Company’s financial assets which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; or,
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* The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

The Parent Company’s investments that are held for trading are classified as financial assets at
FVTPL as at March 31, 2020,

* Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are not entered into with the
intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified as financial assets at FVTPL or
designated as AFS financial asset. After initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less allowance for impairment losses.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in the “Interest
income” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Any losses arising from
impairment are recognized in “General and administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

As at March 31, 2020, the Parent Company’s loans and receivables include cash and cash
equivalents, receivables, long-term note receivable and deposit under “Other noncurrent assets”.

» AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are those non derivative financial assets designated as
such or are not classified as at FVTPL, HTM investments or loans and receivables. These are
purchased and held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes
in market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealized gains or losses arising from the changes in fair values of AFS financial assets are
reported in (OCI). When the investment is disposed of or determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI is recognized as income or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Dividends earned on holding AFS financial
assets are recognized when the right of payment has been established. The losses arising from
impairment of such financial assets are recognized as provision for impairment losses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The fair value of AFS financial assets that are actively traded in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market close prices at the close of business on the reporting
period. AFS financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably because of lack of reliable
estimates of future cash flows and discount rates necessary to calculate the fair value of unquoted
equity instruments, are carried at cost.

The Parent Company’s AFS financial assets are presented under noncurrent assets in the
consolidated statements of financial position. As at March 31, 2020, the Parent Company’s AFS
financial assets include investments in quoted and unquoted equity shares.

* HTM Investments. Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity are classified as HTM when the Parent Company has the positive intention and ability to
hold it to maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in
this classification. Other long-term investments that are intended to be HTM, such as bonds, are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. This cost is computed as the amount initjally
recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the
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effective interest method of any difference between the initially recognized amount and the
maturity amount. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums and discounts. For investments carried at amortized cost, gains and losses are
recognized in income when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process.

As at March 31, 2020, the Parent Company has no HTM investments.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities, as
appropriate.

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a
component that is a financial liability are reported as expense or income. Distributions to holders of
financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any related income tax
benefits.

The Parent Company’s financial liabilities are in the nature of other financial liabilities. As at March
31, 2020, the Parent Company has no financial liabilities at FVTPL.

*  Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for
trading or not designated as at FVTPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities
arising from operations and borrowings. Issued financial instruments or their components, which
are not classified as at FVTPL are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of
the contractual arrangement results in the Parent Company having an obligation either to deliver
cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The
components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after
deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of issue.

As at March 31, 2020, the Parent Company’s financial liabilities include accounts payable and
accrued expenses (excluding statutory payables), subscription payable and due to related parties.

Classification and Measurement Effective January 1, 2018

Classification of Financial Assets. Financial assets are classified in their entirety based on the
contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial assets and the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets. The Group classifies its financial assets into the following measurement
categories:

* Financial assets measured at amortized cost;

* Financial assets measured at FVTPL;

* Financial assets measured at FVOCI, where cumulative gains or losses previously recognized are
reclassified to profit or loss; and,

* Financial assets measured at FVOCI, where cumulative gains or losses previously recognized are
not reclassified to profit or loss
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Contractual Cash Flows Characteristics. If the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, the Group assesses
whether the cash flows from the financial asset represent solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

In making this assessment, the Group determines whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement, i.e., interest includes consideration only for the time value of
money, credit risk and other basic lending risks and costs associated with holding the financial asset
for a particular period of time. In addition, interest can include a profit margin that is consistent with a
basic lending arrangement. The assessment as to whether the cash flows meet the test is made in the
currency in which the financial asset is denominated. Any other contractual terms that introduce
exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that is unrelated to a basic lending
arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Business Model. The Group’s business model is determined at a level that reflects how groups of
financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. The Group’s business
model does not depend on management’s intentions for an individual instrument.

The Group’s business model refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The Group’s business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both. Relevant factors considered by the Group in
determining the business model for a group of financial assets include how the performance of the
business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to
the Group’s key management personnel, the risks that affect the performance of the business model
(and the financial assets held within that business model) and how these risks are managed and how
managers of the business are compensated.

»  Financial Assets at Amortized Cost. A debt financial asset is measured at amortized cost if
(a) it is held within a business model for which the objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

These financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method, less any impairment in
value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortization is included in “Interest
income” in the consolidated statement of income and is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset, except for (a) purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets and (b) financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, where, in
both cases, the EIR is applied to the amortized cost of the financial asset. Losses arising from
impairment are recognized in “Provision for bad debts” in the consoclidated statement of income.

As at March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Group has financial assets at amortized cost
consisting of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, note receivable, long-term
note receivable and deposit under “Other noncurrent assets”.
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»  Financial Assets at FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL unless these are
measured at amortized cost or at FVOCIL Included in this classification are equity investments
held for trading and debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Financial assets held at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value, with
transaction costs recognized in the consolidated statement of income as incurred. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.

Additionally, even if the asset meets the amortized cost or the FVOCI criteria, the Group may
choose at initial recognition to designate the financial asset at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (an accounting mismatch) that
would otherwise arise from measuring financial assets on a different basis.

Trading gains or losses are calculated based on the results arising from trading activities of the
Group, including all gains and losses from changes in fair value for financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL, and the gains or losses from disposal of financial investments.

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL consists of investments in quoted equity shares that are
held for trading as at March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

»  Financial Assets af FVOCI A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if (a) it is held within a
business model for which the objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and (b) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial
assets are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
included in other comprehensive income within a separate component of equity. Impairment
losses or reversals, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit
and loss until the financial asset is derecognized. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
This reflects the gain or loss that would have been recognized in profit or loss upon derecognition
if the financial asset had been measured at amortized cost. Impairment is measured based on the
expected credit loss (ECL) model.

The Group may also make an irrevocable election to measure at FVOCI on initial recognition
investments in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognized in a business combination in accordance with PFRS 3. Amounts recognized in OCI are
not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. Dividends on such investments are recognized in profit or loss, unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Dividends are recognized in profit or loss only when:
¢ the Group’s right to receive payment of the dividend is established;

s it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group;
and,

¢ the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

As at March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Group’s financial assets at FVOCI pertains to
investments in unquoted equity shares that are not held for trading.
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Classification of Financial Liabilities. Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, except for
the following:

s Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss;

= Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition
or when the Group retains continuing involvement;

* Financial guarantee contracts;

*  Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate; and,

= Contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in accordance with PFRS 3.

A financial Lability may be designated at fair value through profit or loss if it eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (an accounting mismatch) or:

= if a host contract contains one or more embedded derivatives; or,

« if a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and liabilities is managed and its performance
evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with 2 documented risk management or investment
strategy.

Where a financial liability is designated at FVTPL, the movement in fair value attributable to changes
in the Group’s own credit quality is calculated by determining the changes in credit spreads above
observable market interest rates and is presented separately in other comprehensive income.

As at March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Group’s financial liabilities include accounts
payable and accrued expenses (excluding statutory payables), subscription payable, due to related
parties, loan payable and finance lease liability.

Impairment of Financial Assets Prior to January 1, 2018

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or Group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or Group of financial asset is
deemed impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has or have occurred after initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event™) and that
loss has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the Group of financial
asset that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about loss events
such as but not limited to significant financial difficulty of the counterparty, a breach of contract, such
as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, probability that borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

Loans and Receivables. For loans and receivables, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a Group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and that Group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be
recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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For the purpose of a collective assessment of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of
such credit risk characteristics such as customer type, payment history, past-due status and term.
Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to
reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss
experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist
currently. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any difference between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR (i.e., the EIR computed at initial recognition). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account and the amount of loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Interest income continues to be
recognized based on the reduced amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Receivables, together with the
associated allowance accounts, are written-off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income by adjusting the allowance account.

AFS Financial Assets Carried at Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss in
unquoted equity instrument for AFS financial assets carried at cost, such as unquoted equity
instruments that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset.

Objective evidence of impairment includes, but is not limited to, significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or obligor and it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization.

AFS Financial Assets Carried at Fair Value. For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each end
of reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an AFS financial asset is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. “Significant” is to be evaluated
against cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss (measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognized in OCI) is removed from OCI and recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. While increases in fair value after
impairment are recognized directly in OCI under equity.
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Impairment of Financial Assets Effective January 1, 2018

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired.

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collaterai held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

Expected credit losses are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, expected credit losses are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months
(a 12-month expected credit losses). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime expected
credit losses).

The Group considers a debt investment security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

»  Determination of the Stage for Impairment. At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for financial assets since initial recognition by
comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the reporting date and the
date of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and
qualitative information and forward-looking analysis.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as asset quality deteriorates. If, in a subsequent
period, asset quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant increase in
credit risk since origination, then the loss allowance measurement reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-
month ECL.

v Simplified Approach. The simplified approach, where changes in credit risk are not tracked and
loss allowances are measured at amounts equal to lifetime ECL, is applied to ‘Trade receivables’.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For any other financial assets carried at amortized cost (which are due in more than 12 months), the
expected credit losses is based on the 12-month expected credit losses. The 12-month expected credit
losses is the proportion of lifetime expected credit losses that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the aillowance will be based on the lifetime
expected credit losses. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.
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The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows
and usvally occurs when past due for more than one year and not subject to enforcement activity.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to set off the recognized
amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is not
contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and all of the counterparties.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either {(a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continwing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. In such
case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
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and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Group‘s consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

“Day 1" Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the
transaction price and fair value (a “Day 17 difference) in profit or loss under “Interest income” and
“Interest expense” accounts unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset or liability.
In cases where fair value is determined using data which is not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become
observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the
appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1" difference amount.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and with banks and short-term deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term,

highly liquid deposits that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of
three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid FExpenses

Prepaid expenses include items of goods or services purchased by the Group for use in its operations
but not fully consumed by the end of the accounting period. When goods or services are initially
purchased, the amount is recorded in the asset account. At the end of the period, the Group determines
the portion of such expenditures that is applicable to subsequent period and the portion used up during
the current period. The used-up portion is recognized in profit or loss.

Advances to Suppliers

Advances to supplier represents prepayments relative to acquisitions of assets or operational
agreements entered into by the Group and its suppliers. These advances will be reclassified to the
specific asset account once the risks and rewards over the assets are transferred to the Group or
charged to expense once the related services are rendered.

Prepaid expenses and advances to suppliers are included in current assets, except when the related
goods services are expected to be received or rendered more than twelve (12) months after the
reporting date which are classified as noncurrent assets.

Prepaid Taxes

Prepaid taxes consist substantially of creditable withholding taxes (CWTs) which are recognized as
assets to the extent that it is probable that the benefit will flow to the Group. These are derecognized
when there is a legally enforceable right to apply the recognized amounts against related liability with
the period prescribed by the relevant tax laws.

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies. The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method. Under the equity method, the investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
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statement of financial position at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets
of the associate.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income reflects the share of the results of operations of
the associate. Where there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the
Group recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in associates. The Group determines at each end of the
reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retaining
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retaining investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognized in profit or loss.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-
refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment
have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period when the costs are incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional
costs of property and equipment,

Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item is depreciated separately.

Depreciation and amortization of other items of property and equipment is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the asset as follows:

Category Number of Years
Condominium units and improvements 20

Machinery and equipment
Transportation equipment

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
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The assets residual values, useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.

When property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, both the cost and related
accumulated depletion, depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value are removed from the
accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is credited to or charged against current operations.

Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use
and no further depreciation is charged to current operations.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Construction in progress represents structures under construction and is stated at cost. This includes
cost of construction and other direct costs. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
construction of property and equipment are capitalized during the construction period.

Investment Properties

Investment properties pertain to the Group’s investment in parcels of land and related improvements
that are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Expenditures for the development and
improvement of land are capitalized as part of the cost of the land. The carrying amounts include the
costs of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time those costs are incurred if the
recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day to day servicing of an investment property.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are carried at cost less any impairment in the books of the
Group.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period of
derecognition.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced
by the end of owner-occupation or the start of an operating lease to another party. Transfers are made
from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by start of owner-
occupation or of development with a view to sell.

Under the cost model, transfers between investment property, owner-occupied property and
inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property transferred and they do not change the
cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Deferred Exploration Costs

Oil, gas and mineral exploration and evaluation activity involves the search for hydrocarbon resources,
the determination of technical feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of an identified
resource. Once the legal right to explore has been acquired, costs directly associated with exploration
are capitalized under “Deferred exploration costs” account. The Group’s deferred exploration costs
are specifically identified for each Service Contract (SC)/Geophysical Survey, Exploration Contract
(GSEC) area and quarrying area. All oil exploration costs relating to each SC/GSEC are deferred
pending the determination of whether the contract area contains oil, gas and mineral reserves in
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commercial quantities. Capitalized expenditures include costs of license acquisition, technical services
and studies, exploration drilling and testing, and appropriate technical and administrative expenses.
General overhead or costs incurred prior to having obtained the legal rights to explore an area are
recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when incurred.

If no potentially commercial hydrocarbons are discovered or mineral reserve, the deferred exploration
costs are written off through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If extractable
hydrocarbons are found and, subject to further appraisal activity (e.g., the drilling of additional wells),
it is probable that they can be commercially developed, the costs continue to be carried under deferred
exploration costs account while sufficient/continued progress is made in assessing the commerciality
of the hydrocarbons. Costs directly associated with appraisal activity undertaken to determine the size,
characteristics and commercial potential of a reservoir following the initial discovery of hydrocarbons,
including the costs of appraisal wells where hydrocarbons were not found, are initially capitalized as
deferred exploration costs.

At the completion of the exploration phase, if technical feasibility is demonstrated and commercial
reserves are discovered, then, following the decision to continue into the development phase, the
deferred exploration costs relating to the SC/GSEC, where oil, gas and mineral in commercial
quantities are discovered, is first assessed for impairment and (if required) any impairment loss is
recognized, then the remaining balance is transferred to property and equipment in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Deferred exploration costs are assessed at each reporting period for possible indications of impairment.
This is to confirm the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract value from the discovery.
When this is no longer the case or is considered as areas permanently abandoned, the costs are written
off through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Exploration areas are considered
permanently abandoned if the related permits of the exploration have expired andfor there are no
definite plans for further exploration and/or development.

The recoverability of deferred exploration costs is dependent upon the discovery of economically
recoverable reserves, the ability of the Group to obtain necessary financing to complete the
development of reserves and future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of
recoverable reserves.

Other Noncurrent Assets

Advances for Future Land Acquisitions
Advances for future land acquisitions represent the advance payments to the land owners plus
transaction costs. These are carried at undiscounted amounts.

Input Value-Added Tax (VAT)

Revenues, cxpenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if applicable. When VAT
from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from purchases of goods
or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated statement of
financial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds
VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

Leasehold Rights
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Leasehold rights pertain to an interest in real property held under agreement by which the owner
gives the Group the right to occupy or use the property for a period of time. This is amortized over
the life of the contract.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

Investments in Associates

The Group determines at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in associates is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment being the difference between the recoverable amount of the investment and the carrying
value and recognizes the amount in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

An assessment is made at the end of the reporting period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indications exist, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is
reverse only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the investment’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the
investments is increased to its recoverable amount. The increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the assets in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Deferred Exploration Cosis

An impairment review is performed, either individuaily or at the cash generating unit (CGU) level,
when there are indicators that the carrying amount of the deferred oil exploration cosis may exceed
their recoverable amounts. To the extent that this occurs, the excess is fully provided against, in the
reporting period in which this is determined. Deferred exploration costs are reassessed on a regular
basis and these costs are carried forward provided that at least one of the following conditions is met:

e such costs are expected to be recouped in full through successful development and exploration of
the area of interest or alternatively, by its sale; or

s exploration and evaluation activities in the area of interest have not yet reached a stage which
permits a reasonable assessment of the existence or otherwise of cconomically recoverable
reserves, and active and significant operations in relation to the area are continuing, or planned for
the future.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets, Property and Equipment, Investment Properties and
Other Noncurrent Assets (excluding Deposit)

The Group assesses at each reporting period whether there is an indication that a nonfinancial assct
may be impaired when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an assct
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. As asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time vaiue of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the Group’s
consolidated statements of comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.
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As assessment is made at each end of the reporting period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to its recoverable amount. However, the increased amount cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to
allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its
remaining useful life.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are reviewed at each end of the reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax amount that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as “Interest and other finance
charges” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Equity

Capital Stock. The Group has issued capital stock that is classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new capital stock are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Subscription Receivable. Subscription receivable pertains to the amount of subscribed capital stock
less the amount paid-up. Subscription receivable is presented as deduction from capital stock.

Additional Paid-in Capital. Additional paid-in capital is the portion of paid-in capital received
representing excess over par value.

Treasury Stock. Treasury stock is recorded at cost and is presented as a deduction from equity. Any
consideration paid or received in connection with treasury stock is recognized directly in equity.

When the shares are retired, the capital stock account is reduced by its par value. The excess of cost
over par value upon retirement is debited to the following accounts in the order given:

» Additional paid-in capital to the extent of the specific or average additional paid in capital when
the shares are issued, and

e Retained earnings.
When shares are sold, the treasury stock account is credited and reduced by the weighted average cost

of the shares sold. The excess of any consideration over the cost is credited to additional paid-in
capital.
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Transaction costs incurred such as registration and other regulatory fees, amounts paid to legal,
accounting and other professional advisers, printing costs and stamp duties (net of any related income
tax benefit) in relation to the issuing or acquiring the treasury shares are accounted for as reduction
from equity, which is disclosed separately.

Rerained Earnings. Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss,
dividend declarations, prior period adjustments, effect of changes in accounting policy and other
capital adjustments.

Dividend distribution to the Group’s stockholders is recognized as a liability and deducted from
retained earnings when they are approved by the Group’s BOD. Dividends for the vear that are
approved after the end of the reporting period are dealt with as an event after the end of the reporting
period.

Other Comprehensive Income. Other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expense
(including items previously presented under the consolidated statement of changes in equity) that are
not recognized in the profit or loss for the year in accordance with PFRSs.

Revenue Recognition

Prior to the Adoption of PFRS 15

Revenue is recognized based on the transfer of risks and rewards and to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received as receivables, excluding discounts, rebates,
and other sales taxes or duties. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria
in order to determine if it is acting as a principal or an agent.

Upon Adoption of PFRS 15

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A
performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of revenue
recognized is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation. The Group has concluded
that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it controls the goods or services before these
goods or services are transferred to the customer.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

= Sale of Aggregates. Sale of aggregates is recognized when the goods are delivered to and accepted
by the customer. Sale of aggregates is recognized when control passes to the customer, which
occurs at a point in time when the aggregates are physically transferred and accepted by the
customer. Selling prices are based on agreed prices between the customer and the Group.

* Royalty Income. Royalty income is recognized over time under PFRS 15 when earned which is
consistent under PAS 18.

52

SEC Form 17-Q
Report for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2020



Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation

Interest Income

Income is recognized as the interest accrues (using the EIR that is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset).

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

QOther Income
Income is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they are earned.

Costs and Expenses

Costs and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or depletions of assets or incurrences of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than
those relating to distributions to equity participants. General and administrative expenses are
generally recognized when the services are used or the expenses arise while interest and other finance
charges are accrued in the appropriate period.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is computed based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding and subscribed for
cach respective period with retroactive adjustments for stock dividends declared, if any. When shares are
dilutive, the unexercised portion of stock options is included as stock equivalents in computing diluted
earnings per share.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net income (loss) by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for any stock dividends declared during the year plus
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive
ordinary shares into ordinary shares, excluding treasury shares.

Since the Group has no potential dilutive common shares, basic and diluted earnings per share are
stated at the same amount.

Business Segment

For management purposes, the Group is organized into two (2) major operating segments (mining and
non-mining business) according to the nature of the products and the services provided with each
segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different
markets. The entities are the basis upon which the Group reports its primary segment information.
Financial information on business segments are presented in Note 30.

Retirement Benefits Plan

The Group has a defined retirement benefit plan which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of
plan assets, adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset
ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method. This method reflects service rendered by employees to the date of
valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning the employees’ projected salaries.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

e Service cost
¢ Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
e Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on
non-routine settlements are recognized as “Personnel cost” under general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Past service costs are recognized when plan
amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by independent qualified
actuarics.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
deftned benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods. These are retained in OCI until full settlement of the obligation.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to the
Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a
discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected
disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of
the related obligations).

If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the
measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is
virtually certain.

Income Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The income tax rates and income tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted as at the end of the
reporting period.
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The Group records uncertain tax positions on the basis of a two-step process whereby the Group
determines whether it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained based on technical
merits of the position, and for those tax positions that meet the more likely than not criteria, the Group
recognizes the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate
settlement with related tax authority. The Group records interest and penalties on uncertain tax
positions in “Income tax expense (benefit)” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

¢ where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in foreign subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:

s where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss; and

» in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in foreign subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each end of the reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient future taxable income will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the income tax rates that are expected to apply to the

year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on income tax rates (and income tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at each end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Group’s functional
and presentation currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional
currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates prevailing as at the date of the initial transactions. All
differences are taken to “Foreign exchange gains (losses) - net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed

in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information on the Group’s financial position at the
reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-
end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements
when material.
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